
Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         March 13, 2017 
Amended 3/12/17 

Russell County Page 1 
 

  

RUSSELL COUNTY 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISOR’S MEETING 
 

AGENDA – MARCH 13, 2017 
 
 

Conference Center                Regular Meeting               5:00 PM 
 

Russell County Governmental Center 
Lebanon, Virginia 24266 

 

 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER – Clerk of the Board 
 
ROLL CALL – Clerk of the Board 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION (CLOSED) 
 
INVOCATION – Pastor Jim Ensor, Honaker First Baptist Church 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

1. RC Junkyard Ordinance 
 

2. RC Solid Waste Ordinance 
 

3. Regional Industrial Development Authority (IDA) Ordinance 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
PRESENTATIONS (Limited to 5 minutes)…………………………………………………...A-1 
 

1. Dr. Brown – RC Schools – Regional School Stats 
2. Lonzo Lester / Dr. Michelle Mister - RC Animal Shelter  
3. Shawn Lindsey - Executive Director - Spearhead Trails 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         March 13, 2017 
Amended 3/12/17 

Russell County Page 2 
 

 
 

4. Mickey Rhea - RC Building Inspector Reports 
5. Susan White – Dir. of Sr. Vol. Serv. – CV Community Action, Inc.  
6. Christina Trail – Animal Control Concerns 
7. Tony Powers – Glade Hill Subdivision 
8. Charlene Farthing – RC Animal Adoptions 

 
BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
CASTLEWOOD WATER & SEWER……………………………………………………………B-1 
Billy Wayne Wampler                3 Year-Term 
Gary Dotson                               3 Year-Term 
 
DANTE COMMUNITY CENTER BOARD MEMBERS 
Bobbie Gullet                             2 Year-Term 
Earl Jenkins                               2 Year-Term 
Arthur Phillips                            2 Year-Term 
Fred Patrick                                2 Year-Term 
 
RC LIBRARY BOARD (Removal) 
Debbie Gibson   June 30, 2018  
Kirby Meadows   June 30, 2017 
Harry Steffey   June 30, 2018 
 
SWCC LOCAL ADVISORY BOARD 
 
VACANT – Robert Taylor (Resignation) 
   
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1.  Approval of Minutes.  Consider approval of the minutes of the  
 following meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors………………C-1 

 
a. Unapproved minutes of February 6, 2017 
b. Unapproved minutes of February 17, 2017 
c. Unapproved minutes of February 27, 2017           

  
2. Approval of Expenditures. Consider approval of expenditures presented  

for payment……………………………………………………………………………...C-2 
 

CITIZEN’S COMMENT PERIOD (Limited to 3 minutes) 
 
CONSTITUTIONAL OFFICER REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 
COUNTY ATTORNEY REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 



Agenda                        Board of Supervisors         March 13, 2017 
Amended 3/12/17 

Russell County Page 3 
 

 
 
 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR REPORTS AND REQUESTS 
 

REPORTS 
 

1. Virginia Tourism Corporation Marketing Leverage Program Grant……………D-1 
 

2. RC & RCMC Veterans Affairs Forum…………………………………………………D-2 
 

REQUESTS 
  

3. Authorization to Purchase Waste Disposal Equipment.……………….………...D-3 
 

4. Authorization to Bid & Purchase a Community Work Program Vehicle………D-4 
 

5. Authorization of Travel Request………………………………………………………D-5 
 

MATTERS PRESENTED BY THE BOARD 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
COUNTY AGENCY / BOARD REPORTS: 
        

 Treasurer’s Report ………………………………………………………………………E 

 RC IDA …………………………………………………………………………………….F 

 RC PSA …………………………………………………………………………………... G 

 Castlewood W&S ………………………………………………………………………..H 

 RC Tourism………………………………………………………………………………..I 

 RC Planning Commission ……………………………………………………………..J 

 Conference Center………………………………………………………………………K 

 RC Fitness Center……………………………………………………………………….L 

 RC Transportation & Safety…………………………………………………………...M 

 RC Cannery Reports…………………………………………………………………….N   
 



CLOSED SESSION 
 
Motion made by _________________, second by ___________ and duly approved by the 

Board of Supervisors enter into closed session to discuss a prospective business matter 

pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(5) of the Code of Virginia and to discuss a litigation matter 

pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(7). 

The vote was: 
Aye:  ________ 
Nay:  ________ 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 

Pursuant to §2.2-3712 (D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended, each member of the 

Board of Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only 

public business matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the 

Virginia Freedom of Information Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were 

identified in the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was convened were heard, 

discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of Supervisors. 

Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 

requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the 

substance of the departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 

Are there any Supervisors who believe a departure has taken place? 

Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, discussed or considered during the 

closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the closed meeting was 

convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace -  

Lou Ann Wallace -   

Carl Rhea -  

Steve Breeding -  

David Eaton -  

Rebecca Dye -  

Mark Mitchell - 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 

Motion made by _______________, second by _________________ and duly approved by 

the Board of Supervisors to return to regular session. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  _______ 
Nay:  _______ 



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 

   Board of Supervisors                         Action Item 

137 Highland Drive                                 Presenters - Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting: 3/13/17  6:00 PM 
 

 

Public Hearing  
 
1.  RC Junkyard Ordinance 

 
2. RC Solid Waste Ordinance 

 
3. Regional Industrial Development Authority (IDA) Ordinance 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Board Discretion. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Ordinances 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Page | 1 
 

RUSSELL COUNTY JUNK YARD ORDINANCE 

 AN ORDINANCE REGULATING JUNK DEALERS, THE ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF 

JUNKYARDS, INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITED TO AUTOMOBILE JUNKYARDS, THE STORAGE AND 

DISPOSAL OF SCRAP, REFUSE, AND JUNK ARTICLES, PROVIDING FOR THE ISSUANCE OF LICENESES FOR 

JUNK DEALERS AND FOR THE MAINTENANCE AND OPERATION OF JUNKYARDS UNDER PRESCRIBED 

CONDITION, PRESCRIBING REMEDIES FOR THE ABATEMENT OF NUISANCES AND UNLICENSED JUNK 

YARDS AND SCRAP YARDS, PRESCRIBING PENALTIES FOR VIOLATORS, AND PROVIDING FOR THE 

REVOCATION OF LICENSES IN THE EVENT OF NON-COMPLIANCE. 

 

Section 1:     Short-Title.  This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as "Russell County Junkyard 

and Refuse Ordinance". 

 

Section 2:    Definitions.  "Unless otherwise expressly stated, the following words and phrases shall be 

construed throughout this ordinance to have the meanings herein indicated: 

 a. Person.  Shall include any partnership, association, firm, corporation, or individual. 

 b.   Board.  Shall mean the Board of Supervisors of Russell County. 

 c. Junk.  Shall mean old or scrap copper, brass, rope, rags, batteries, paper, trash, rubber,  

  debris, waste or junked, dismantled, or wrecked   automobiles or parts thereof, iron,  

  steel, and other old or scrap ferrous or non-ferrous material.   

 d.   Junk Yard.  Shall mean an establishment or place of business which is maintained,  

  operated or used for storing, keeping, buying, or selling junk or operation of an   

  automobile graveyard, and the term shall include garbage dumps and sanitary fills. 

 e.   Automobile graveyards.  Shall mean any lot or place which is exposed to the weather  

  and upon which more than five motor vehicles of any kind, incapable of being operated, 

 and which it would not be economically practical to make operative, are place, located   

 or found. 

 f. Junk Dealer.  Shall mean any person, as hereinafter defined  (1) who shall engage in the  

  business of buying, selling, storing, salvaging, processing, disposing of, or accumulating  

  junk, and (2) who maintains and operates a junkyard within the County of Russell. 

 g. License.  Shall mean the permit granted to a junk dealer. 

 

Section 3.   License.  No person shall engage in business as a junk dealer, or maintain a junk yard, or 

automobile grave yard, without first having obtained a license from the Board, for which license a fee in 

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight



Page | 2 
 

accordance with the schedule hereinafter set forth shall be paid to Russell County.  The license shall be 

issued for the twelve month period beginning July 1 and ending June 30 of the following year, and each 

license must be renewed annually or before the first day of July of each year. 

 Such license shall state the name of the person to who such license is issued and the premises 

on which such junkyard is to be maintained. Such license shall be posted conspicuously upon the 

premises licensed thereunder. 

 

Section 4.   Application for License.   

Application for the license described above shall be made by the person desiring to be licensed.  Said 

application shall be in writing and shall include the following information: 

 (1)  name, address and telephone of applicant; 

 (2)  specific location and description of proposed junkyard site; 

 (3)  a map of site showing boundaries and dimensions, natural drainage and any proposed  

       changes in that drainage, and adjacent landowners. 

 

Section 5.   Issuance of Licenses.  The Planning Commission shall make a thorough initial examination of 

the application, taking into consideration the suitability of the property proposed to be used for the 

purposes of the license, the character of the property located nearby, and the effect of the proposed 

use, both economic and aesthetic.  The Planning Commission shall make a report of its findings to the 

Board of Supervisors. The Board of Supervisors may issue a license subject to such additional terms and 

conditions, in addition to the regulations contained herein and adopted pursuant to this ordinance, as 

may be deemed necessary by the Board to carry out the spirit and intent of this ordinance. 

 

Section 6:   Review.  In cases where the Board of Supervisors (hereafter "Board") shall issue a denial of a 

license the Applicant shall have a right of review of the decision as set forth hereafter. 

 

Section 6 (a).    Informal Fact Finding.  The Applicant may within ten (10) days file a written request of 

informal fact finding with the County Administrator.  The County Administrator shall notify the Board of 

the request for informal fact finding.  The Board or its appointed agent shall schedule a hearing date 

within twenty (20) days of the request for informal fact finding.  Such informal fact finding conference - 

consultation shall include the right of parties to the case (i) to have reasonable notice thereof, (ii) to 

appear in person or by counsel or other qualified representative before the Board or its' subordinates 

for the informal presentation of factual data, argument, or proof in connection with any case, (iii) to 

have notice of any contrary fact basis or information in the possession of the Planning Commission upon 



Page | 3 
 

which the Board may rely in any way in making an adverse decision, (iv) to receive a decision within ten 

(10) days of the date of hearing of any application for a license or renewal thereof and(v) to be 

informed, briefly and generally in writing of the factual or procedural basis for an adverse decision in any 

case. 

 

Section 6 (b).    Formal Proceedings. 

 A.  In the event the Applicant receives an adverse decision based upon the informal fact finding, 

he may, within ten (10) days of the date of said adverse decision file a request for formal proceeding 

with the County Administrator.  The County Administrator shall immediately notify the Board of the 

request for said formal proceeding. The formal proceeding shall be held within twenty (20) days of the 

date of the receipt of the request for said formal proceeding 

 B.  The Board shall afford an opportunity for the formal taking of evidence upon relevant fact 

issues in any case in which an adverse decision has been made. 

 C.  Parties to such formal proceedings shall be given reasonable notice of (i) the time, place, and 

nature thereof, (ii) the basic law or laws under which the Board contemplates its' possible exercise of 

authority, and (iii) the matters of fact and law asserted or questioned by the Planning Commission. 

 D.  In all such formal proceedings the parties shall be entitled to be accompanied by and 

represented by counsel, to submit oral and documentary evidence and rebuttal proofs, to conduct such 

cross-examination as may illicit a full and fair disclosure of the facts, and to have the proceedings 

completed and a decision made within ten (10) days of the date of hearing.  The burden of proof shall be 

upon the Proponent or Applicant.  The Board, or its subordinates designated for the purpose, shall 

preside at the taking of evidence.  The presiding officer at such proceedings are empowered to (i) 

administer oaths and affirmations, (ii) receive probative evidence, exclude relevant, immaterial, 

insubstantial, privileged, or repetitive proofs, rebuttal, or cross-examination, rule upon offers of proof 

and oversee an accurate verbatim recording of the evidence, (iii) hold conferences for the settlement or 

simplification of issues by consent, (iv) dispose of procedural requests, and (v) regulate and expedite the 

course of hearing.  Where subordinates preside, they shall recommend findings in a decision, unless the 

Board shall, by its procedural regulations, provide for the making of findings and an initial decision by 

such presiding officers subject to review and reconsideration of the Board on appeal to it as of right or 

on its own motion. 

 E.  Prior to the recommendations or decision of subordinates, the parties concerned shall be 

given opportunity, on request, to submit in writing, for the record, (i) proposed findings and conclusions 

and (ii) statement of reasons therefore.  In all cases, on request, opportunities shall be afforded for oral 

argument, (i) to subordinate presiding officers in all case in which they make such recommendations or 

decisions or (ii) through the Board in cases in which it makes the original decision without such prior 

recommendation and otherwise as it may permit in its discretion or provide by general rule.            



Page | 4 
 

Where subordinates make recommendations or decisions, the Board shall receive and act on exceptions 

thereto. 

 F.  All decisions or recommended decisions shall be served upon the parties, become a part of 

the record, and briefly state or recommend the findings, conclusions, reasons or basis therefore upon 

the evidence presented by the record and relevant to the basic law under which the Planning 

Commission is operating together with an appropriate order granting the license or denial thereof. 

 

Section 6(c).    Written Notices.  All notices of review and all orders of the Board shall be served upon the 

designated party by certified mail, unless service otherwise made is duly acknowledged by the party 

receiving same in writing. 

 

Section 6 (d).    Court Review.   Any person effected by or any party aggrieved by a decision of the Board 

shall have a right to the direct court review thereof by an appropriate and timely court action against 

the Board in the manner provided by the Rules of the Supreme Court of Virginia.  Provided, however, 

that no such right of review shall be brought, unless within twenty-one (21) days of the date of the 

decision appealed from, there is instituted an action for the review of same in the appropriate court. 

 

Section 7.    License Fee.  The license fee shall be paid immediately upon the issuance or renewal of a 

license to the Russell County Board of Supervisors.  The amount of the license fee shall be ONE 

HUNDRED ($100.00) DOLLARS.  No tract of land larger than twenty (20) acres, excluding setback areas, 

shall be used as a junkyard. 

 

Section 8.    License Limitation.  No person licensed under this ordinance shall, by virtue of one license, 

maintain more than one junkyard.  No person shall engage in business as a junk dealer in any place 

other than the place designated upon his license, or maintain a junkyard in any place other than the 

place designated upon his license. 

 

Section 9.    Transfer of License.  No license issued by the Board shall be transferable by the licensee to 

any other person unless such a transfer is authorized by the Board.  Any person desiring to transfer his 

license shall notify the Board in writing, which notification shall be accompanied by an application for 

license, as described in Section 4 of this ordinance, by the transferee. 

 

Tim Lovelace
Highlight



Page | 5 
 

Section 10.    Transfer Fee.  In the event the Board shall approve the transfer of a license, the transferee 

shall immediately pay to the Russell County Board of Supervisors a transfer fee of one ($100) dollars.  

Licenses do not run with the land. 

 

Section 11.    Inspection.  Upon presentation of proper identification to the owner or custodian of a 

junkyard as defined herein the Board of Supervisors or their duly authorized representative, the County 

Sanitation Officer, may periodically inspect any licensed junkyard; any junkyard for which there has been 

made an application for a license; or any junkyard as defined herein for which no application for license 

has been made.  The purpose of said inspection is to determine initial and continual compliance with the 

Regulations of this Ordinance. 

 

Section 12.    Regulations.  Every person licensed under this ordinance shall constantly maintain the 

licensed premises in accordance with any special provisions imposed by the Board and in the manner 

prescribed by this section and any subsequent regulations adopted by the Board; 

  a.  Such premises shall at all times be maintained so as not to constitute a nuisance 

   or a menace to the health of the community or of residents nearby or a place  

   for the breeding of rodents and vermin. 

  b.   No garbage or other organic waste shall be stored in such premises. 

  c. Whenever any motor vehicle shall be received in such premises as junk, all  

   gasoline shall be drained and removed therefrom.  Gasoline in an amount not  

   exceeding five hundred (500) gallons may be stored above ground in said junk  

   yards provided the same be placed in containers approved by the Board.  All  

   other gasoline which is kept in the premises shall be stored underground, which  

   underground storage must be approved by the Board. 

  d. The manner of storage and arrangement of junk, and the drainage facilities of  

   the premises shall be such as to prevent the accumulation of stagnant water  

   upon the premises, and to facilitate access for fire-fighting purposes. 

  e. It shall be unlawful for any person licensed under this ordinance to burn junk  

   within a junkyard at any time except in the manner approved by the Virginia Air  

   Pollution Control Board.  However, no oil, grease, tires, gasoline or other similar 

   material that might be dangerous or tend to produce obnoxious smoke or odors 

   shall be burned within a junkyard at any time. 

  f. The premises to be licensed shall be set back a minimum distance of fifty (50)  

   feet from the right -of-way lines on all streets or roads and a minimum distance  

   of fifty (50) from all other property lines.  The area between the setback line and 

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight



Page | 6 
 

   the right-of-way line and all streets and roads and all other property lines, shall  

   be at all times, kept clear and vacant. 

  g. No junkyard shall be hereafter established, any portion of which is within one  

   thousand feet of the nearest edge of the right-of-way of any primary highway or 

   within five hundred feet of the nearest edge of the right-of-way of any other  

   highway or city street, except the following: 

   (1)    Junkyards which are screened by natural objects, plantings, fences, or  

   other appropriate means so as not to be visible from the main-traveled way of  

   the highway or city street or otherwise removed from sight. 

   (2)    Junkyards which are located in areas which are zoned for industrial use  

   under authority of State law or in unzoned industrial areas as determined by the 

   rules and regulations of the State Highway Commission. 

   (3)   Junkyards which are not visible from the main-traveled way of the highway  

   or city street. 

  h.   Each license holder must keep an accurate log book in which each purchase or  

   sale of junk is recorded, and such book shall be subject to inspection, all as  

   provided in Virginia Code §54-832 (1980 supp.). 

 

Section 13.    Violations.   Any person who shall fail to obtain a license as required above shall be subject 

to a penalty of fifty ($50) dollars.  For any other violation of any of the provisions of this ordinance, 

penalty shall be fixed upon conviction, in an amount not to exceed one hundred ($100) dollars and the 

costs of prosecution.  Each day's violation of any of the provisions of this ordinance shall constitute a 

separate offense.  Violators will be prosecuted in the General District Court of Russell County. 

 

Section 14.    Conformity.  Any junkyard, as defined herein, in existence on July 1, 1981, which is 

unlicensed, shall have ninety (90) days from a final determination made by the Board pursuant to 

paragraph 6 above that it is subject to being licensed, to conform to this ordinance.  Any junkyard, as 

defined herein, which came into existence after July 1, 1981, and which cannot be made to conform to 

this ordinance, it declared to be a private and public nuisance and may be forthwith removed, 

obliterated or abated by the Board of Supervisors or it's representatives.  The Board of Supervisors may 

collect the cost of such removal, obliteration or abatement from the person owning or operating such 

junkyard and the costs of same shall be a lien against the property until the same is satisfied in full. 

 

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight



Page | 7 
 

Section 15.    Abatement of Nuisances.  In addition to the remedies provided in Section 12 above, any 

continued violations of this ordinance which shall constitute a nuisance in fact or which shall in the 

opinion of the Board constitute a nuisance may be abated by proceeding against the violator in a court 

of equity for relief. 

 

Section 16.    Severability.  If any section of this ordinance shall be found to be invalid the other sections 

of the ordinance shall not be affected thereby. 

 

Section 17.    Repeal.   All ordinances or parts of ordinance in conflict herewith be and same are hereby 

repealed. 

 

Section 18.    Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective July 1, 1989. 

 

 

 

The vote was: 

Aye: Mike Puckett                                                                                                                                                          
 Ralph Maples                                                                                                                                                          
 Danny Brown                                                                                                                                                     
 Frank Horton                                                                                                                                                     
 Cynthia Compton                                                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                                                      
NAY:      N.C. Meade 



1 
 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT  

 This ordinance is enacted pursuant to authority contained in §§ 15.2-930, 15.2-

1426, 15.2-1427, 15.2-1200, 33.1-346 and Chapter 14, Title 10.1 of the Code of 

Virginia, 1950 as amended. 

Purpose 

 It is the purpose of this article to accomplish refuse management throughout the 

County in order to control disease; to prevent blight and other environmental 

degradation; to promote the generation of energy and recovery of useful resources from 

solid waste; to protect limited natural resources for the benefit of its citizens; to limit 

noxious odors and unsightly garbage, trash, refuse or decay; and to promote and 

protect the public health, safety and welfare. 

General 

(a)  Citations.  This ordinance shall be known and may be cited as the “Russell 

County Solid Waste Management Ordinance.” 

(b)  Severability.  Should any section or provision of this article be declared by 

the courts to be unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect the 

validity of the article as a whole, or any part thereof other than the part so 

declared to be unconstitutional or invalid. 

(c)  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be in full force an effect from the date of 

adoption.  

Definitions 

 For purpose of this ordinance, the following terms shall have the meanings 

respectively ascribed to them herein: 

 Agricultural Waste means all solid waste produced from farming operations. 

Authority means the Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority 

created by the Buchanan County Board of Supervisors, Dickenson County Board 

of Supervisors, and Russell County Board of Supervisors for the purpose of 

collection of garbage and refuse within the member jurisdictions. 

 Board of supervisors, mean the Russell County Board of Supervisors. 

Bulk Waste means appliances, furniture, bedding material, automobile parts, 

mechanical equipment, mechanical parts, and carpet. 

Clean Wood means solid waste consisting of untreated wood pieces and 

particles that do not contain paint, laminate, bonding agents, or chemical 

preservatives or are otherwise unadulterated. 



2 
 

Commercial waste means all solid waste generated by establishments engaged 

in business operations other than manufacturing or construction.  This category 

includes, but is not limited to, solid waste resulting from the operations of stores, 

markets, office buildings, restaurants, and shopping centers. 

Construction Waste means solid waste which is produced or generated during 

the construction, remodeling, or repair of pavements, houses, commercial 

buildings, and other structures.  Construction waste include, but are not limited 

to, lumber, wire, sheet rock, brick, shingles, glass, pipes, concrete, paving 

materials, and metal and plastics if the metal or plastics are a part of the 

materials of construction or empty containers for such materials.  Paints, 

coatings, solvents, asbestos, any liquid, compressed gasses or semi-liquids and 

garbage are not construction wastes. 

Commercial Collectors Any properly permitted commercial garbage and waste 

collection hauler, contractor or business located within and doing business with 

Russell County. 

Convenience Center means a collection point for the temporary storage of solid 

waste provided premises to an established centralized point, rather than directly 

to a disposal facility.  To be classified as a convenience center, the collection 

point may not receive waste from collection vehicles that have regularly 

scheduled collections. 

 County means Russell County, Virginia. 

Debris Waste means wastes resulting from land clearing operations.  Debris 

waste include, but are not limited to, stumps, wood, brush, leaves, soil, and road 

spoils. 

Demolition waste means that solid waste which is produced by destruction of 

structures and their foundations and includes the same materials as construction 

waste. 

Facility means Russell County convenience sites and the Russell County transfer 

station. 

Federal acts mean any act of Congress providing for waste management and 

any regulations promulgated thereunder. 

Garbage means readily putrescible discarded materials composed of animal, 

vegetable or other organic matter. 

 General public means persons or businesses within the county. 

Hauler means and individual, company, corporation, public or private institution, 

or cooperative, county, city, or town or other political subdivision of this 

commonwealth or other state, interstate body, or other legal entity or combination 



3 
 

of the above, who hauls refuse, garbage, sludge or other solid waste as defined 

by this article to the County for disposal. 

Hazardous material means a substance or material in a form or quantity which 

may pose an unreasonable risk to health, safety or property when transported, 

and which the Secretary of Transportation of the United States has so 

designated by regulation or order. 

Hazardous substance means a substance listed under United States Public Law 

96-510, entitled the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and 

Lability Act. 

Hazardous waste means a solid waste or combination of solid waste, which, 

because of its quantity, concentration or physical, chemical or infectious 

characteristics, may: 

(1) Cause or significantly contribute to an increase in mortality or an increase in 

serious irreversible or incapacitating illness; or, 

(2) Pose a substantial present or potential hazard to human health or the 

environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, disposed of, or 

otherwise managed. 

These solid wastes include, but are not limited to, pesticides, poisons, 

corrosives, combustibles, caustics, acids, infectious materials, explosives, 

compressed gases, biological and chemical materials, radioactive materials, 

flammable materials, and petroleum products.  

Household waste means those items of solid waste that can reasonably be 

expected to be generated from within a home by the day-to-day operation of the 

household.  The term household waste specifically excludes construction waste, 

demolition waste and yard waste. 

Industrial waste means any solid waste generated by manufacturing or industrial 

process that is not a regulated hazardous waste.  This term does not include 

mining waste or oil and gas waste. 

Litter means, for purposes of this chapter, any solid waste that is discarded or 

scattered about a solid waste management facility outside the immediate working 

area. 

 Loitering means the act of idly remaining in a public place for a protracted time. 

Open dump means a site on which any solid waste or hazardous waste is place, 

discharged deposited, injected, dumped, or spilled so as to create a nuisance or 

so as to present a threat of a release of harmful substances into the environment 

or present a hazard to humans or the environment. 



4 
 

Municipal solid waste means that waste that is normally composed of residential, 

commercial, and institutional solid waste and residues derived from combustion 

of these wastes. 

Person means an individual, corporation, partnership, association, a 

governmental body, a municipal corporation, or any other legal entity. 

Recycling means the process of separating a given waste material from the 

waste stream and processing it so that it is used again as a raw material for a 

product which may or may not be similar to the original product. 

Regulated medical waste means waste as defined by the Regulated Medical 

Waste Management Regulations (9VAC20-120) as promulgated by the Virginia 

Waste Management Board. 

Salvage means the authorized, controlled removal of waste materials from a 

solid was management facility. 

Sanitary landfill means an engineered land burial facility for the disposal of 

household waste that is so located, designed, constructed, and operated to 

contain and isolate the waste so that it does not pose a substantial present or 

potential hazard to human health or the environment.  A sanitary landfill also may 

receive other type of solid wastes, such as commercial solid waste, 

nonhazardous sludge, and hazardous waste from conditionally exempt small 

quantity generators, construction demolition debris, and nonhazardous industrial 

solid waste. 

Scrap Metal mean bits and pieces of metal parts, such as bars, rods, wire, empty 

containers or metal pieces that may be combined together with bolts or soldering 

which are discarded material and can be used, reused, or reclaimed. 

Sludge means any solid, semi-solid, or liquid waste generated from a municipal, 

commercial, or industrial wastewater treatment plant, water supply treatment 

plant or air pollution control facility exclusive of treated effluent from a wastewater 

treatment plant. 

Solid Waste means any garbage, refuse, sludge, or other discarded material, 

including solid, semisolid, liquid, or contained gaseous material resulting from 

industrial commercial, mining, and agricultural operations, or community activities 

but does not include: 

(1) Solid or dissolved material in domestic sewage. 

(2) Solid or dissolved material in irrigation return flows or in industrial discharges 

which are sources subject to a permit from the department of environmental 

quality. 

(3) Nuclear, or by product material as defined by the Federal Atomic Energy Act 

of 1954, as amended. 



5 
 

Solid Waste facilities means those facilities, including but not limited to, 

convenience centers, sanitary landfill, transfer site or transfer station, provided by 

the county for with solid waste may be deposited. 

Solid waste management means the administration of activities which provide for 

the collection, separation, storage, transportation, transfer, processing, 

treatment, recycling, and disposal of solid waste. 

Tipping fees means those fees charged for commercial and industrial generators 

of solid waste doing business within Russell County, Virginia pursuant to the 

Russell County Solid Waste Tipping Fee Ordinance. 

Transfer Site means a site, other than a sanitary landfill, transfer site or 

convenience center, upon which specified types of solid waste may be deposited 

and to which such solid waste is deposited on a regular schedule for proper 

disposition. 

Transfer station means a site, other than a sanitary landfill, transfer site or 

convenience center, upon which specified types of solid waste may be deposited 

and to which such solid waste is deposited on a regular schedule for proper 

disposition. 

Transport or transportation means any movement of property and any packing, 

loading, unloading or storage incidental thereto. 

Yard waste means that fraction of municipal solid waste that consists of grass 

clippings, leaves, brush and tree pruning’s arising from general landscape 

maintenance. 

GENERAL PROHIBITIONS 

A.  Authorized use.  Use of the county’s sanitary solid waste facilities are limited to 

persons or businesses disposing of solid waste generated and originated from within 

the county. 

B.  Open dumps.  No person shall operate, construct, maintain or dispose of solid 

waste in open dumps.   

C.  Private landfills.  It shall be unlawful for any person to operate a private landfill or 

to allow waste to be disposed on or otherwise manage on his property within the 

county unless permitted by the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality or such 

other agencies of the Commonwealth of Virginia as may be authorized by law, or 

regulation to permit such activity.  Additionally, it shall be the duty of all persons to 

dispose of or otherwise manage their solid waste in a legal manner. 

D.  Hazardous waste.  It shall be unlawful for any person to dispose of hazardous 

waste within the county. 



6 
 

E.  Scavenging.  Scavenging of any material from a county-owned sanitary landfill, 

transfer site or convenience center is prohibited. 

F.  Regulated medical waste.  It shall be unlawful for any person to dispose of 

regulated medical waste at a county-owned sanitary landfill, transfer site, transfer 

station or convenience center. 

TRESPASSING 

      (a)  Sanitary landfill.  It shall be unlawful for any person, other than county 

employees actually engaged in the course of their employment and law enforcement 

officers in the performance of their official duties, to enter or cause another to enter 

upon county sanitary landfill property except during normal business hours of operation. 

(1) Restrictive access.  During the hours of normal operation, county employees 

shall direct persons to specific areas of the landfill and/or shall prohibit access to 

specified areas of the sanitary landfill.  It shall be unlawful for any person to 

disobey such directive.   

      (b)  Transfer sites and convenience centers.  It shall be unlawful for any person, 

other than county employees actually engaged in the course of their employment, and 

law enforcement officers in the performance of their official duties, to enter or cause 

another to enter upon an area controlled and operated by the county as a transfer site 

or a convenience center, except during the hours of operation.  

      (c)  Parking.  It shall be unlawful for any person, other than a county employee or 

law enforcement officer actually engaged in the course of his employment, to stop or 

park a motor vehicle on a county sanitary landfill, transfer site or convenience center 

except temporarily for the purpose of unloading solid waste in accordance with the 

provisions of this article and the regulations promulgated thereunder. 

LITTERING 

(a)  General.  It shall be unlawful for any person to dispose of or cause to be disposed 

of any solid waste by littering in or upon any property within Russell County. 

Any person who disposes of solid waste by placing same inside a container provided 

by the county for the purpose of collecting said solid waste shall be deemed to be in 

compliance with the requirements of this section. 

(b)  Transfer sites.  It shall be unlawful for any person to drop, deposit, discard or 

otherwise dispose of solid waste in, on or around any transfer site except in refuse 

containers provided for the purpose of solid waste collection.  

(c)  Convenience centers. It shall be unlawful for any person to drop, deposit, discard 

or otherwise dispose of solid waste in, on or around any convenience center except in 

refuse containers provided for the purpose of solid waste collection unless county 



7 
 

established procedures provided for the purpose of solid waste collection unless 

county established procedures provide otherwise for specified types of solid waste. 

(d)  Transportation of solid waste.  It shall be unlawful for any person to collect or 

transport solid waste in a vehicle unless such solid waste shall be enclosed or 

securely covered by a canvas, screen wire, or secured by other means to prevent its 

loss from the vehicle in transit. 

DISCHARGE OF FIREARMS 

 It shall be unlawful for any person willfully to discharge, or cause to be 

discharged, a firearm into or upon the property of sanitary landfill facilities, transfer sites 

or convenience centers; provided that this section shall not apply to any law 

enforcement officer in the performance of his official duties nor to any other person 

whose said willful act is otherwise justifiable or excusable at law in the protection of his 

life or property. 

COUNTY SANITARY LANDFILL FACILITIES 

     (a)  Sanitary landfill.  Sanitary landfill facilities shall be owned and operated by the 

county and are not   for the use of the general public.  Such facilities shall be operated 

under permit from the department of environmental quality and in accordance with rules 

and regulations promulgated by said department.  The sanitary landfill facilities are no 

longer operational for the acceptance of new solid waste of any kind. 

     (b)  Hours of operation.  Sanitary landfill facilities shall be closed to the general 

public. 

     (c)  Landfill attendants.  Sanitary landfill activities necessary for closing and 

monitoring the sanitary landfills shall be supervised and controlled by county employees 

at all times.  It shall be unlawful for any person to willfully disobey, ignore, or improperly 

carry out any legal and proper order or direction of any such employee directed toward 

the proper use of the sanitary landfill facilities. 

     (d)  Unacceptable wastes.  All solid wastes of every, kind, nature and description are 

unacceptable at county sanitary landfill facilities. 

TRANSFER SITES 

     (a)  Establishment.  The Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management 

Authority, of which the county is a member, may authorize establishment of transfer 

sites at locations deemed necessary to adequately serve the citizens of the county.  

Sites shall be selected with due regard for convenience of residents in the service area, 

safe ingress and egress, traffic flow, topography, environmental protection, avoidance of 

nuisances to adjacent and nearby residents and landowners, and budgetary concerns. 

     (b)  Hours of operation.  Transfer sites shall be open to the general public on a 

regular schedule.  The Authority is authorized to set the days and hours of operation. 



8 
 

     (c)  Unauthorized items.    The following items may not be placed in the containers or 

on the ground at transfer sites: 

 (1)  Hazardous waste including asbestos material and regulated medical waste. 

 (2)  Animal carcasses, including fowl, other than pets (i.e., cats and dogs) and 

road kill animals. 

(3)  Liquid.  Liquid is the solid waste that qualifies as liquid under the 

Environmental Protection    Agency Paint Filter Test.  Any solid waste containing 

less than 25 percent solids, by weight, is also considered a liquid. 

(4)  Vehicles.  Automobiles, trucks, buses, trailers, farm equipment, construction 

vehicles such as bulldozers, cranes and other like motorized vehicles and 

equipment. 

(5)  Closed drums. 

(6)  Slaughterhouse waste. 

(7)  Unapproved industrial process waste. 

(8)  Unapproved sewage sludge. 

(9)  Improperly prepared containers such as paint cans and pesticide containers. 

Said items must be disposed of in an authorized landfill or other authorized 

collection site. 

     (e)  Containment.  With the exception of bulky items and items that do not lend 

themselves to packaging, all refuse containers at transfer sites shall be contained in 

securely closed plastic bags, heavy paper bags or other containers which will prevent or 

minimize scattering or blowing of refuse. 

     (f)   Boxes.  Cardboard boxes, crates, and similar containers shall be cut and 

flattened prior to placement in refuse containers at transfer sites. 

     (g)  Littering.  It shall be unlawful for any person to drop, deposit discard, or 

otherwise dispose of any solid waste or other material in, on, or around any transfer site 

except in refuse containers provided for the purpose of solid waste collection.  (Also see 

section §17.2-109(f)).  Any article found so placed outside of a refuse container and 

name and/or address appears thereon, and that such person placed or caused to be 

placed such article outside of a refuse container; provided, however, that such 

presumption shall be rebuttable by competent evidence.  A canvas, screen wire or other 

such material shall securely cover all vehicles used for collection/transportation of solid 

waste to prevent littering. 

     (h)  Parking.  No parking of motor vehicles, except official county vehicles, shall be 

permitted at any time on any transfer site.  Only temporary stopping for the purpose of 

unloading solid waste into refuse containers shall be permitted. 



9 
 

     (i)  Borrow pits and privately licensed solid waste facilities.  The provision of this 

article shall not apply to those person or entities licensed and /or permitted by the 

department of environmental quality, Virginia Department of Health, county department 

of health, department of mines, minerals, and energy in the maintenance and operation 

of borrow pits, and the disposal of such items as are approved by those agencies in the 

use and reclamation of mines and borrow pits. 

     (j) Recycling.  The county shall provide containers, at designated locations, to 

facilitate recycling.  Containers shall be provided to facilitate collection of selected 

recycling commodities.  Containers shall be clearly marked to indicate the recycling 

commodity or commodities that may be placed in the containers.  It shall be illegal for 

any person to place anything in these containers other that the recycling commodity or 

commodities so designated. 

     (k) Tipping Fees.  Every commercial and industrial generator of solid waste doing 

business within Russell County, Virginia shall be charged a disposal tipping fee for solid 

waste collection and disposal for all solid waste directly or indirectly deposited at the 

transfer site in accordance with the Russell County Solid Waste Tipping Fee Ordinance. 

CONVENIENCE CENTERS 

     (a) Establishment.  The Board of Supervisors may authorize establishment of 

convenience centers at locations deemed necessary to adequately serve the citizens of 

the county.  Sites shall be selected with due regard for convenience of residents in the 

service are, safe ingress and egress, traffic flow, topography, environmental protection, 

avoidance of nuisances to adjacent and nearby residents and landowners and 

budgetary concerns. 

     (b) Hours of operation.  Convenience centers shall be open to the general public on 

a regular schedule.  The county administrator is authorized to set the days and hours of 

operation. 

     (c) Users.  Convenience centers shall be available to persons disposing of limited 

quantities of household waste and designated recyclables originated and generated 

within the county.  Convenience centers are not for commercial, business, or industrial 

use.  Trailers and high-sided pickup trucks hauling large volumes of waste are 

prohibited. 

     (d) Unauthorized items.  The following items may not be brought to convenience 

centers: 

 (1)  Construction materials or debris such as timbers, brick, metal, shingles, and 

concrete. 

 (2)  Appliances, bicycles, lawn mowers, other metal objects. 

 (3)  Furniture or other bulk waste. 



10 
 

 (4)  Dead animal and fowl. 

(5)  Trees, bush, stumps, dirt, and other debris from land clearing, road building, 

and similar    activities. 

(6)  Tires. 

(7)  Automobiles, trucks, construction equipment, and similar vehicles. 

(8)  Sewage sludge. 

(9)  Ashes, coals, and embers from solid fuel fired devices. 

(10)  Hazardous materials such as pesticides. 

(11)  Liquid wastes. 

(12)  Pressurized containers such as propane tanks. 

(13)  Improperly prepared containers. 

     (e) Containment.  With the exception of bulky items and items that do not lend 

themselves to packaging, all refuse brought to convenience centers shall be contained 

in the securely closed plastic bags, heavy paper bags, or other containers which will 

prevent or minimize scattering or blowing of refuse. 

     (f)  Littering.  It shall be unlawful for any person to drop, deposit, discard, or 

otherwise dispose of any solid waste or other material in, on, or around any 

convenience center except in refuse containers provided for the purpose of solid waste 

collection (Also see section §17.2-108(g)).  Any article found so placed at any 

convenience center and bearing a person’s name and/or address shall be presumed to 

be the property of such person whose name and/or address appears thereon, and that 

such person placed or caused to be placed such article outside of a refuse container; 

provided, however, that such presumption shall be rebuttable by competent evidence.  

A canvas, screen wire or other such material shall securely cover all vehicles used for 

the collection/transportation of solid waste to prevent littering. 

    (g)  Parking.  No parking of motor vehicles, except official county vehicles and the 

attendant’s vehicle, shall be permitted at any time at any convenience center.  Only 

temporary stopping for the purpose of authorized unloading of solid waste shall be 

permitted. 

    (h)  Recycling.  The county may provide containers, at designated convenience 

centers, to facilitate recycling.  Containers, when provided, are to facilitate collection of 

selected recycling commodities (such as plastics, glass, newspaper, used motor oil).  

Containers shall be clearly marked to indicate the recycling commodity or commodities 

that may be placed in the containers.  It shall be illegal for any person to place anything 

in the containers.  It shall be illegal for any person to place anything in these containers 

other than the recycling commodity or commodities so designated. 



11 
 

    (i)  Scavenging. 

(1)  It shall be unlawful for any person to scavenge in or around the 

containers or otherwise remove any discarded solid waste from or about 

any solid waste site or any bulk or roll-off container. 

(2)  No person shall be permitted to remove trash, garbage, or any other 

items from within or around the containers or compactors located at the 

refuse sites. 

VIOLATIONS AND PENALTIES 

     (a) Penalties for violation of any provision of this article or any County policy or 

regulation includes fines and possible revocation of the commercial collection permit.  

Violation of any provision of this article is a violation of Russell County Code and shall 

be deemed to be a Class 1 Misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punishable by 

a fine of not more than $2500, or no more than 12 months in jail, or both or possible 

revocation of the commercial collection permit. 

     (b)  Nothing contained in this article shall limit the authority of any law enforcement 

officer having jurisdiction to issue appropriate criminal or other lawful process for 

violations committed in his presence or upon proper warrant. 

COLLECTION PERMITS 

A. Every commercial collector or hauler disposing of solid waste in Russell County, 

Virginia shall obtain from the Russell County Board of Supervisors a permit 

before engaging in the collection and disposing of trash, or garbage or sludge. 

B. Every commercial collector or hauler shall make application for such permit on a 

form supplied by the Russell County Board of Supervisors, which application 

shall state the full name, address and telephone number of the applicant, 

together with the full name and address of the applicant’s registered agent if the 

applicant is a corporation; the area within the County the applicant proposes to 

serve; or haul to, or from and dispose of solid waste and the number and size of 

the vehicles the applicant proposes to use. 

C. It shall be unlawfully too knowingly and intentional make a false statement in 

Appling for or securing a permit. 

D. Every applicant shall pay an annual fee as established by resolution of the Board 

of Supervisors for a permit, which shall expire January 15 of the year next 

following the year for which issued.  It shall be unlawful to engage in trash, 

garbage collection and/or hauling of trash, garbage and sludge for disposal in the 

County without a current, valid permit. 

DISPOSAL OF SOLID WASTE COLLECTED  

A. It shall be unlawful to dump, store, burn, bury, destroy or otherwise dispose of 

garbage, trash, refuse or any other solid waste generated within the limits of the 



12 
 

County except at the Russell County Transfer Station or a facilities of the County 

designated for solid waste disposal. 

B. It shall be unlawful to establish, maintain or operate an unregulated, unlicensed 

dump or landfill within Russell County, Virginia. 

EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE 

     This ordinance shall be effective on the 13th day of March 2017.  The county 

Administrator is directed to file a certified copy of this Ordinance in the Offices of the 

Clerk of the General District Court of Russell County and the Clerk of the Circuit Court 

of Russell County. 

Adopted this the 13th day of March, 2017. 

 

  
  ___________________________________ 

STEVE BREEDING, CHAIRMAN 

Russell County Board of Supervisors 

 

Attest: _______________________________ 

 LONZO LESTER, ADMINISTRATOR 

 Russell County Board of Supervisors 

     

  

  

 

 

  

 

 

 



























VIRGINIA:  AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

TAZEWELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA HELD AT THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION 

BUILDING IN THE TOWN OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA, ON THE _________ DAY OF 

__________________, 201__, FOLLOWING A PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE BOARD 

HELD ON THE ________DAY OF ____________, 201___, UPON NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

BY PUBLICATION IN A NEWSPAPER OF GENERAL CIRCULATION IN THE COUNTY 

OF TAZEWELL, THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED, FOLLOWING 

PUBLIC HEARING, A MOTION AND SECOND: 

 

Ordinance No.______       Date:_______ 

  

AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE 
A REGIONAL INDUSTRIAL FACILITIES AUTHORITY 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 15.2-6400 ET SEQ. OF THE CODE OF VIRGINIA 
 
WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that economic development of the County is 
dependent in large measure on the economic development of the Region as a whole; 
 
WHEREAS, to promote and encourage economic activity, including but not limited to 
investment and employment of county residents, the Board desires to work in 
cooperation with neighboring Counties, Buchanan, Russell, and Dickenson, to facilitate 
the development of Industrial Facilities in the four County Region; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors for Tazewell County, Virginia does 
hereby Ordain and establish a Regional Industrial Facilities Authority for Buchanan, 
Dickenson, Russell and Tazewell Counties pursuant to Section 15.2-6400 et seq. of the 
Code of Virginia and further resolves as follows: 
 
1. The name of the Authority shall be the "Cumberland Industrial Facilities Authority", 
hereinafter "the Authority". 
 
2. The member localities shall be Buchanan, Tazewell, Russell and Dickenson.  Each 
locality's participation shall become effective as of the date their respective governing 
body enacts an ordinance substantially similar to this ordinance authorizing creation of 
the Authority. 
 
3. The Authority shall be governed by an initial Board of Six (6) members. Three (3) 
members shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors for Buchanan County and 
Three (3) members shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors for Tazewell County.   
 
 In the event a third County shall enact an ordinance to join the Authority the 
number of members of the Board shall remain at Six (6), the most recently joining 
County's governing body shall be allowed to appoint Two (2) members of the Board to 
replace the longest serving member from each of the two initial member counties, such 
that each of the three member Counties' governing body shall have appointed two 
members of the Board. 



 In the event a fourth County shall enact an ordinance to join the Authority the 
number of members of the Board shall be increased to Eight (8) and the governing body 
of the fourth locality joining the Board may appoint two new members to the Board. 
 
 Each member of the Board shall be a resident of the locality whose governing 
body appointed the member.  The Board members shall serve terms of four years, 
except that one of the first two members appointed by the governing body of each 
locality shall be appointed to a term of just two years, such that the terms of the 
members of the Board from each locality are staggered. 
 
 The Board shall have such authority and exercise such powers as are permitted 
by the Code of Virginia. 
 
4. The Chairmanship of the Board shall be rotated annually among the member 
localities, such that no chairperson may serve as chairperson for more than one year 
consecutively and no two members appointed by the same locality may serve 
consecutive terms as chairperson. 
 
5. No member may serve more than two consecutive terms, except that initial 
members who may be appointed to an initial two year term may serve two additional 
four year terms. 
 
6. The Authority may adopt such rules and by-laws as are consistent with the Code 
of Virginia and this ordinance and may exercise all powers granted to such authorities 
under Virginia Law.      
 
 It is so ORDAINED this ________ day of __________________, 2016. 
 
RECORDED VOTE: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:       

MEMBERS ABSENT:_______      

AYES:          

NAYS:  _______      

ABSTENTIONS:        

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

            

Patricia Green, County Administrator  John M. Absher, Chairman 



VIRGINIA:  AT A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 

TAZEWELL COUNTY, VIRGINIA HELD AT THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATION 

BUILDING IN THE TOWN OF TAZEWELL, VIRGINIA, ON THE _________ DAY OF 

__________________, 201__, FOLLOWING A PUBLIC HEARING BEFORE THE BOARD 

HELD ON THE ________DAY OF ____________, 201___, UPON NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

BY PUBLICATION IN A NEWSPAPER OF GENERAL CIRCULATION IN THE COUNTY 

OF TAZEWELL, THE FOLLOWING ORDINANCE WAS ADOPTED, FOLLOWING 

PUBLIC HEARING, A MOTION AND SECOND: 

 

Ordinance No.______       Date:_______ 

  

AN ORDINANCE TO CREATE 
A JOINT INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

PURSUANT TO SECTION 15.2-4916 OF THE CODE OF VIRGINIA 
 
WHEREAS, the Board recognizes that economic development of the County is 
dependent in large measure on the economic development of the region as a whole; 
 
WHEREAS, to promote and encourage economic activity, including but not limited to 
investment and employment of county residents, the Board desires to work in 
cooperation with neighboring Counties, Buchanan, Russell, and Dickenson, to facilitate 
industrial development in the four county region; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Supervisors for Tazewell County, Virginia does 
hereby ordain and establish a Joint Economic Development Authority for Buchanan, 
Dickenson, Russell, and Tazewell Counties pursuant to Section 15.2-4916 et seq. of the 
Code of Virginia and further resolves as follows: 
 
1. The name of the Authority shall be the "Joint Cumberland Economic Development 
Authority", hereinafter "the Authority" or "JCEDA". 
 
2. The Authority shall include the localities of Buchanan, Tazewell, Russell and 
Dickenson.  Each locality's participation shall become effective as of the date their 
respective governing body enacts an ordinance substantially similar to this ordinance 
authorizing creation of the Authority. 
 
3. The Authority shall be governed by a Board of Eight (8) members. Two (2) members 
shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors for Buchanan County, Two (2) members 
shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors for Tazewell County, Two (2) members 
shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors for Russell County and Two (2) 
members shall be appointed by the Board of Supervisors for Dickenson County.   
 
 Each member of the Board shall be a resident of the locality whose governing 
body appointed the member.  The Board members shall serve terms of four years, 
except that one of the first two members appointed by the governing body of Buchanan, 
Tazewell, and Russell Counties shall be appointed to a term of just two years, such that 



the terms of the members of the Board from each of those localities are staggered. 
 
 The Board shall have such authority and exercise such powers as are permitted 
by the Code of Virginia fir Industrial Development Authorities pursuant to Section 
15.2-4916 of the Code of Virginia.   
 
4. The Chairmanship of the Board shall be rotated annually among the member 
localities, such that no chairperson may serve as chairperson for more than one year 
consecutively and no two members appointed by the same locality may serve 
consecutive terms as chairperson. 
 
5. No member may serve more than two consecutive terms, except that initial 
members who may be appointed to an initial two year term may serve two additional 
four year terms. 
 
6. The Authority may adopt such rules and by-laws as are consistent with the Code 
of Virginia and this ordinance and may exercise all powers granted to such authorities 
under Virginia Law.      
 
 It is so ORDAINED this ________ day of __________________, 2017. 
 
RECORDED VOTE: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:       

MEMBERS ABSENT:_______      

AYES:          

NAYS:  _______      

ABSTENTIONS:        

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

            

Patricia Green, County Administrator  John M. Absher, Chairman 



 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

 

RESOLUTION  

Support for Establishing Economic Development Regional or Joint Authority 

for the City of Norton, Lee, Scott, Wise and Dickenson Counties 
 

WHEREAS, there exists a recognition among the legislative leaders and economic development 

professionals of Southwest Virginia that there exists a need for a new strategy for economic development within 

the counties of far Southwest Virginia; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Virginia General Assembly is working to establish a vehicle to market the counties of far 

Southwest Virginia for the purpose of economic development, job creation, and also a desire that the localities 

within far Southwest Virginia develop a strategy for possible revenue sharing and cost sharing for projects of 

mutual economic development interests; and  

 

WHEREAS, there exists localities that share similar interest in attracting and growing economic and 

business opportunities and who also share various resources,  encompassing the Lenowisco Planning District 

areas of the City of Norton, Lee, Scott and Wise Counties, along with neighboring Dickenson County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the above named localities recognize the need to mobilize resources, business and community 

leaders, and partners in education and government, in generating new ideas and advancing policies which help 

secure a future of expanding opportunity for the citizens of far Southwest Virginia; and 

 

WHEREAS, the above named localities agree there exists an immediate and imperative need for regional 

cooperation to increase the diversity and availability of job opportunities for their citizens through collaborative 

economic development efforts; and 

 

WHEREAS, the above named localities see great benefit in establishing either a regional authority or joint 

authority that best fulfills the mission to be embarked upon; and  

 

WHEREAS, Wise County embraces the concept of creating such a regional or joint authority. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, on the basis of the foregoing, the Board of Supervisors of the County of 

Wise, Virginia adopts this resolution indicating the common interest of Wise County and the benefit of 

working collaboratively with the City of Norton, along with Lee, Scott and Dickenson Counties. 
 

ADOPTED this the 9th day of March 2017.   
  

  

ATTEST:      WISE COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS  

 

 

 __________________________________  _______________________________________  

Shannon C. Scott, Clerk                                 Dana Kilgore, Chairman  



                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 

Board of Supervisors Information Item A-1 

137 Highland Drive                                  Presenters - Various 
Lebanon, VA 24266                    

Meeting: 3/13/17      6:00 PM 
 

 

Presentations 
  
1. Lonzo Lester / Dr. Michelle Mister - RC Animal Shelter  
2. Shawn Lindsey - Executive Director - Spearhead Trails 
3. Mickey Rhea - RC Building Inspector Reports 
4. Susan White – Dir. of Sr. Vol. Serv. – CV Community Action, Inc.  
5. Christina Trail – Animal Control Concerns 
6. Tony Powers – Glade Hill Subdivision 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 
Presentation – Informational Only. 

 
Suggested Motion: 

 
No Motion Required.  

 
ATTACHMENTS: 

 Presentations 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 









































































Proposal for Expanding RSVP 

The Retired and Senior Volunteer Program at Clinch Valley Community Action, Inc. is one of the three 
oldest RSVP programs in the United States. It has been a program at CVCA for over 45 years. 

RSVP is a Federal service program administered through the Corporation for National and Community 
Service which also is responsible for AmeriCorp, VISTA, Foster Grandparent Program and the Senior 
Companion Program. 

RSVP volunteers in Tazewell County serve in over 35 Volunteer Stations providing a variety of volunteer 
service activities that address identified community needs. Volunteer Stations include food banks, 
hospital auxiliaries, schools, service organizations, TRIAD, Special Needs In Disaster, Volunteer Income 
Tax Assistance, Veterans services, cultural heritage and preservation groups, chambers of commerce, 
towns and more. Over 100 of the current 264 serving RSVP volunteers serve in activities that help the 
frail elderly and disabled remain independent in their homes. These Independent Living services include 
transportation to vital medical appointments and for grocery shopping, meal preparation and delivery, 
small home repairs, yard work, bringing in mail and making appointments, etc. Capacity building is 
another strong volunteer activity in several of the Volunteer Stations. RSVP volunteers solicit and gather 
local donated items for thrift stores and food banks, provide planning and implementation skills for 
fundraising events, market services and provide grant-writing skills for new funding and maintaining 
funding levels. 

RSVP staff and CVCA conduct community assessments, develop and implement stakeholder, volunteer 
and customer surveys, and participate on multiple coalitions and committees in order to stay abreast of 
changes in the scope of needs and to capture as much community resource information as possible. 

The RSVP at CVCA has a program director which is shared with the Senior Companion Program; one 
part-time Volunteer Coordinator and one part-time RSVP Administrative Assistant. The RSVP office is 
located in the main office of CVCA in North Tazewell. CVCA has 51 years of experience addressing 
community needs and managing Federal, State, foundation and local funding for over 30 service 
programs. The RSVP program has consistently received positive monitoring results and is proactive in 
addressing any suggestions or programmatic changes. 

Volunteers must be ages 55 or older to serve in the RSVP program. The sponsors (CVCA) of RSVP 
programs are responsible for oversight of all volunteer activities, complete information gathering and 
capturing for volunteer registration information, volunteer activities, volunteer communications, 
volunteer recognition, recruiting and volunteer station communications. Each active RSVP volunteer is 
covered under a mandated supplemental insurance policy that provided secondary insurance for injury, 
liability, and vehicle use (to and from volunteer activity). The policy is paid for by the RSVP funded 
sponsor. 

The Corporation for National and Community Service recently released a Notice of Funding Opportunity 
for funding available to provide RSVP program service in communities that are not currently served by 
RSVP. Funded programs will be required to provide volunteer services in specific focus areas such as 
Disaster Services, Economic Opportunity, Education, Environmental Stewardship, Health Futures 

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight

Tim Lovelace
Highlight









Russell County Board of Supervisors Meeting  

March 13, 2017 

Speaker:  Charlene Farthing  

Friends of Russell County Virginia Animal Shelter requests the following be 

implemented in regards to the animal shelter:  

Adoption Fee of $85 for dogs or cats ($50 refundable once animal 

is spayed or neutered).   

Adoption Fee of $35 for dogs or cats already spayed or neutered.   

1.   Payable to Treasurer’s Office. 

2.  Adopter brings receipt to shelter to pick up animal. 

3.  Returns to Treasurer’s Office with proof of spay/neuter to receive refund 

within 30 days of adoption of adult animals and within 30 days of sterilization of 

puppies and kittens. 

 Adoption Requirements  

1.  Must be at least 18 with a current photo ID     

2.  Must not have convicted of animal cruelty or abuse 

 

 

 

 

 

Tim Lovelace
Highlight



What is included in the adoption fee?  

Dogs/Puppies:  

 Distemper vaccination 

 De-wormer   

 Heartworm test  

 An information packet including medical documents and other useful 

resources  

 A collar and personalized tag, courtesy of the Friends of Russell County 

Virginia Animal Shelter  

 A follow-up phone call or email to check in 

 Cats/Kittens:  

 Distemper vaccination  

 De-wormer 

 Combo test (for FIV and FeLV)  

 An information packet including medical documents and other useful 

resources  

 A collar and personalized tag, courtesy of Friends of Russell County 

Virginia Animal Shelter  

 A follow-up phone call or email to check in  

 

 



Join Alley Cat Allies for a special  

Trap-Neuter- Return (TNR) Seminar 
 
Spring is almost here! This is the time of year when most cats are born and 
when they most need our help. Alley Cat Allies wants to show you how you 
can get involved, fund, and save community cats’ lives with TNR! 
 
In the seminar, you’ll learn… 
 
• What TNR is 
• The benefits of TNR for your community 
• How to be part of solution and start TNR in your town 
• How to speak to people about Trap, Neuter, & Return 
 

 

 

Learn About Helping Cats in 

Your Community 

Saturday, April 22nd 

9 to 12 pm 
Eastern Star Building (formerly Coca Cola) 

16641 East Riverside Drive 
St. Paul, VA 24283 

 
Brought to you by: 

 



 

Board of Supervisors   Action Item B-1 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 3/13/17  6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Board Appointments   

Appointments of the RC Board Appointments: 

 
CASTLEWOOD WATER & SEWER 
Billy Wayne Wampler                3 Year-Term 
Gary Dotson                               3 Year-Term 
 
DANTE COMMUNITY CENTER BOARD MEMBERS 
Bobbie Gullet                             2 Year-Term 
Earl Jenkins                               2 Year-Term 
Arthur Phillips                            2 Year-Term 
Fred Patrick                                2 Year-Term 
 
RC LIBRARY BOARD (Removal) 
Debbie Gibson   June 30, 2018  
Kirby Meadows   June 30, 2017 
Harry Steffey   June 30, 2018 
 
SWCC LOCAL COLLEGE BOARD (Resigned) 
Robert Taylor                             June 30, 2019 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  

Board Discretion.  

 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Motion to appoint Board Members.  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 None 

 
 
 
 
 









 

Board of Supervisors                           Action Item C-1 

137 Highland Drive  Presenter: Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

   Meeting: 3/13/17      6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Approval of Minutes  

Request approval of the minutes from the following meeting: 

 Unapproved minutes of February 6, 2017 

 Unapproved minutes of February 17, 2017 

 Unapproved minutes of February 27, 2017 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 

Board discretion 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Motion to approve Board Minutes. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Board Minutes 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



February 06, 2017 

A regular monthly meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, February 

06, 2017 at 6:00 pm at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia.  A closed session 

was held prior to the meeting beginning at 5:00 pm. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
Mark Mitchell 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
 
Absent:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the agenda as presented with the addition of closed session.   
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors 

enter into closed session pursuant to Virginia code 2.2-3711 for discussion concerning a prospective 

business or industry, land acquisition, actual or probable litigation and personnel matters. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Tim Lovelace and Rebecca Dye 



Nay:  None 
 

 
 

CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information  Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 

discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 

closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – AYE 
Carl Rhea – AYE 
David Eaton – AYE 
Rebecca Dye - AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Mark Mitchell – AYE 
 
 
Invocation by Rick Thompson, Treasurer of Russell County followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the 

Flag. 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
Brian Ferguson, Russell County Waste Management Department gave the Board a brief presentation on 
the current waste management operations with a power point presentation. 
 
Kim Short, Russell County Health and Fitness gave an update on the recent happenings of the fitness 
center including the addition of the 24 hours access and employee discount.  She stated that at present 
they have 150 members.   Mrs. Short also gave a brief tourism update. 
 
Briana Apgar, Community Assessment Planner for the Virginia Department of Health explained that the 
CHA is a community driven evaluation to better understand life and health for residents in your 
community.  She invited everyone to attend the first assessment team meeting on February 14. 
 
The Board recognized the Boy Scouts in the audience and thanked them for attending. 
 



Kelly Hill, Blood Assurance Business District Manager shared some information about the benefits of 
donating blood. 
 
New Business 

APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 03, 2017 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the January 03, 2017 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, David Eaton and Rebecca Dye  
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 20, 2017 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the January 20, 2017 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF THE JANUARY 25, 2017 MINUTES 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve the January 25, 2017 minutes and dispense with the reading thereof. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
Abstain:  Rebecca Dye and Steve Breeding 
 

APPROVAL OF GENERAL COUNTY INVOICES 
 
Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve general county invoices in the amount of $ 1,145,875.88 including reoccurring and withholdings.                                     
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 
Citizens Comment 
 
Reggie Childers, Lebanon commented that St.Paul, Cleveland, Honaker and Lebanon have all have 
accepted the need for tourism.  He stated that on June 13, 2017 at 7:00 pm the Lebanon Lions Club will 
sponsor a meeting with the new president of Appalachian Power.  He asked that the Town Council and 
the Board members attend.  He also suggested decoration with Christmas trees in the front foyer of the 
government center. 



 
The Chairman closed Citizens Comment. 
 
Constitutional Officer Reports and Requests 
 
Rick Thompson, Treasurer gave an update on the progress of tax collection through the end of January. 
 
County Attorney Reports and Requests 
 
Matthew Crum, County Attorney addressed the Board concerning the Russell County School Board Energy 
Performance Financing Contract. He explained that we had received two bids, Bank of America and First 
Bank and Trust Company. 
 

APPROVAL TO NEGIOTIATE AND ENTER INTO A CONTRACT WITH FIRST BANK AND TRUST COMPANY 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize negotiation’s and enter into a financing agreement with First Bank and Trust Company for the 
Russell County School Board Energy Performance Financing Contract. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
County Administrator Reports and Requests 
 

APPROVAL TO TRANSFER ELK GARDEN AND CLEVELAND SCHOOLS TO THE COUNTY 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the transfer ownership of the Elk Garden and Cleveland Schools from the Russell County School 
Board to the County. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL OF VIOLENCE AGAINST WOMEN GRANT IN THE AMOUNT OF $46,905 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve and appropriate the Violence Against Women Grant from the Department of Juvenile Justice 
Services in the amount of $46,905.00. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 

APPROVAL TO HOLD A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE JUNKYARD ORDIANCE 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Mark Mitchell and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize a public hearing on the Russell County Junkyard Ordinance for the March 2017 Board meeting. 



 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Mark Mitchell, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Steve Breeding, Lou Wallace and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

 
APPROVAL OF A TRAVEL REQUEST FROM THE GENERAL REGISTRAR 

 
Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request from the General Registrar to travel to Hot Springs Va. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, Carl Rhea, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 

 
APPROVAL FOR THE ASSESSOR ENS TRAINING 

 
Motion made by Lou Wallace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
approve a travel request for ENS Training for the Assessor’s Office. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding, Rebecca Dye and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO APPROPRIATE $500.00 TO THE HONAKER HIGH SCHOOL ACADEMIC TEAM 
 

Motion made by Rebecca Dye, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
appropriate $500.00 for the Honaker High School Academic Team to assist with the expenses of traveling 
to the state tournament. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Rebecca Dye, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding and Mark Mitchell 
Nay:  None 
 
The Chairman recognized Becki Joyce, IDA Chairperson.  Ms. Joyce gave an update on some potential 
prospects and thanked the Board for their attendance and participation in the Legislative Reception in 
Richmond, Virginia. 
 

APPROVAL TO CHANGE THE MARCH BOARD MEETING TO MARCH 13, 2017 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
change the Board of Supervisors meeting date from Monday, March 06, 2017 to Monday, March 13, 2017 
at 6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Steve Breeding, Mark Mitchell and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 

 



APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by Mark Mitchell, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Mark Mitchell, David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace, Rebecca Dye and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________                                         ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                             Chairman 



February 17, 2017 

A special called meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Friday, February 17, 

2017 at 10:00 am at the Russell County Government Center in Lebanon, Virginia. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 
Tim Lovelace 
Lou Wallace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
 
Lonzo Lester, Clerk 
 
Absent:  
Mark Mitchell 
Rebecca Dye 
 
Invocation by Chairman Steve Breeding, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag. 

New Business 

PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD ON A PROPOSED JOINT/REGIONAL IDA ORDINANCE 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to hold a 

public hearing on a proposed Joint/Regional IDA Ordinance on Monday, March 13, 2017 at 6:00 pm. 

The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, Tim Lovelace and Steve Breeding  
Nay:  None 
 

PUBLIC HEARING TO BE HELD ON A RUSSELL COUNTY SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL ORDINANCE 
 

Motion made by Tim Lovelace, second David Eaton and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
hold a public hearing on a Russell County Solid Waste Disposal Ordinance on Monday, March 13, 2017 at 
6:00 pm. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Tim Lovelace, David Eaton, Lou Wallace, Carl Rhea and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 

 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVAL TO PURCHASE A VEHICLE FROM THE CPRWMA 
 

Motion made by Carl Rhea, second Lou Wallace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
authorize the County Administrator to negotiate and purchase a 2010 Ford Explorer from the 
Cumberland Plateau Regional Waste Management Authority. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  Carl Rhea, Lou Wallace, David Eaton, Tim Lovelace and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Carl Rhea and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Carl Rhea, Tim Lovelace, Lou Wallace and Steve Breeding 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________                                       _____________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                         Chairman 



February 27, 2017 

A special called meeting of the Russell County Board of Supervisors was held on Monday, February 27, 

2017 at 4:00 pm at the Southwest Virginia Career and Education Center Board Room in Lebanon, 

Virginia.  The meeting was held jointly with the Russell County Industrial Development Authority. 

The Clerk called the meeting to order. 

Roll Call by the Clerk: 

Present: 

Tim Lovelace 
Carl Rhea 
David Eaton 
Steve Breeding 
Rebecca Dye 
 
Lonzo Lester 
 
Absent: 
 
Lou Wallace 
Mark Mitchell 
 
Senator Ben Chafin discussed the implementation of a Regional Industrial Development Authority and 
the hiring of a Regional Marketing Director. 
 
Supervisor Carl Rhea left the meeting at 5:55 pm. 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
enter into closed session pursuant to Section 2.2-371(A)(5), of the code of Virginia to discuss economic 
development matters. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 

 APPROVAL TO RETURN TO REGULAR SESSION 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
return to regular session. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
 

 



CERTIFICATION OF CLOSED SESSION 
 

Pursuant to § 2.2-3712(D) of the Code of Virginia 1950, as amended each member of the Board of 
Supervisors upon the Roll Call certifies that to the best of their knowledge (i) only public business 
matters lawfully exempted from the open meeting requirements under the Virginia Freedom of 
Information  Act and (ii) only such public business matters that were identified in the motion(s) by which 
the closed meeting was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Any member of the Board of Supervisors who believes that there was a departure from the 
requirements of clauses (i) and (ii) above shall so state prior to the vote, indicating the substance of the 
departure that, in his or her judgment, has taken place. 
 
Are there any who believe a departure has taken place?  Seeing none, if you agree that the matters heard, 

discussed or considered during the closed meeting were pursuant only to the motion(s) by which the 

closed meeting was convened, please signify by saying aye or yes. 

Tim Lovelace – AYE 
Lou Wallace – ABSENT 
Carl Rhea – ABSENT 
David Eaton – AYE 
Steve Breeding – AYE 
Rebecca Dye – AYE 
Mark Mitchell – ABSENT 
 

APPROVAL TO ADJOURN 
 

Motion made by David Eaton, second Tim Lovelace and duly approved by the Board of Supervisors to 
adjourn. 
 
The vote was: 
Aye:  David Eaton, Tim Lovelace, Steve Breeding and Rebecca Dye 
Nay:  None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________                                               __________________________ 
Clerk of the Board                                                                               Chairman 
 



 

Board of Supervisors Action Item C-2 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Chairman 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 3/13/17  6:00 PM 
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Russell County Government Center 

137 Highland Drive · Lebanon, Virginia 24266 · (276) 889-8000 · Fax (276) 889-8011 
www.russellcountyva.us 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Approval of Expenditures 

Request approval of the County’s March 2017 Monthly Expenditures: 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s):  

County’s March 2017 Monthly Expenditures are in compliance with budget and operational 

services. 

 

SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Motion to approve County’s March 2017 Monthly Expenditures. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 March 2017 Monthly Expenditures 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 























































 

Board of Supervisors  Action Item D-1 – D-5 

137 Highland Drive Presenter: Administrator 
Lebanon, VA 24266 

Meeting: 3/13/17    6:00 PM 
 
 

 

 
 

County Administrator Reports & Requests 

The County Administrator Reports & Request for March 2017: 
 

REPORTS 
 
1. Virginia Tourism Corporation Marketing Leverage Program Grant……………D-1 

 
2. RC & RCMC Veterans Affairs Forum…………………………………………………D-2 

 
REQUESTS 

  
3. Authorization to Purchase Waste Disposal Equipment.……………….………...D-3 

 
4. Authorization to Bid & Purchase a Community Work Program Vehicle………D-4 

 
5. Authorization of Travel Request………………………………………………………D-5 

 
  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION(s): 

Board Discretion.  
 

 
SUGGESTED MOTION(s): 

Board Discretion.  
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 

 Various 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Russell County Organizations Partner to Receive Virginia Tourism Corporation Grant for 

Tourism Marketing 

 

Governor Terry McAuliffe announced that Russell County Tourism received $5,000 from the 

Virginia Tourism Corporation Marketing Leverage Program grant fund. In total VTC awarded 

more than $772,000 for 62 tourism marketing projects across the state to help increase visitation 

and revenue for Virginia’s localities through tourism.  

 

The grants are designed to help local and regional tourism entities attract more visitors by 

leveraging local marketing dollars, and will ultimately impact at least 260 other statewide 

tourism entities. The local organizations match the state grant funds by a minimum of 2:1 in 

order to support marketing projects. This funding cycle, the local partners will match the VTC 

grant dollars with more than $3.64 million, providing more than $4.4 million in new marketing 

to increase visitation to Virginia. 

 

Russell County Tourism partnered with the Town of Lebanon, Vincent’s Vineyard, and the 

Russell County Fair Association to supply matching funds for the project, which will include the 

printing of brochures, professional photography and video, and other efforts to attract tourists to 

the area.  

 

“This grant will give Russell County the tools to increase the county’s presence in a regionally-

focused marketing plan for far Southwest Virginia” says Russell County Tourism Director Kim 

Short. “We are very proud to be the first locality to incorporate the newly developed Southwest 

Virginia Branding into our logo and brochures, and we want to continue to create partnerships 

that strengthen both Russell County and its neighbors from a tourism and economic development 

aspect”.  

 

The VTC Marketing Leverage Program is designed to stimulate new tourism marketing through 

partnerships by leveraging limited marketing dollars, resulting in increased visitor spending.  A 

minimum of three entities must partner financially to apply and may consist of Virginia towns, 

cities, counties, convention and visitors bureaus, chambers of commerce, other local or regional 

destination marketing organizations, private businesses, museums, attractions, cultural events, 

and other not-for-profit entities.  

 

“Today, we take another critical step in supporting one of Virginia’s largest private sector 

industries and the individual communities across the Commonwealth that foster it,” said 

Governor McAuliffe. “These Marketing Leverage Program grants provide a vital opportunity 

for destinations and businesses across the Commonwealth, helping to create jobs, promote 

economic development, and increase visitor spending. I congratulate the more than 260 tourism 

partners across the Commonwealth that received funding for 62 projects – not only the highest 



number of partners awarded in the program’s history, but the highest dollar match by partners in 

a single funding cycle.” 

 

Research shows that every VTC dollar invested in grants resulted in $16 of direct visitor 

spending. Marketing campaigns that received Marketing Leverage Grants increased visitation by 

15%. 

 

“The Marketing Leverage Program grants provide vital funding to our tourism businesses across 

the Commonwealth, helping to make Virginia an incredible place to visit, but also to live,” said 

Todd Haymore, Secretary of Commerce and Trade. “Through the MLP grant program, 

Virginia Tourism has helped demonstrate the power of partnerships, as well as the economic 

power of tourism. I thank all of our tourism partners and members of the General Assembly for 

their support of this program.” 

Tourism is an instant revenue generator for Virginia. In 2015, tourism generated $23 billion in 

revenue, supported nearly 223,100 jobs and provided $1.6 billion in state and local taxes. Dollars 

invested in tourism are proven to provide a 7:1 return in tax revenue for Virginia, and the grant 

awards and matching funds provide a stimulus to localities seeking to increase tourism visitation 

and revenue. 

 















THIS SPREADSHEET IS SOLELY FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES. PLEASE ENTER THE ORDER THROUGH THE eVA PUNCH OUT CATALOG   

Base Vehicle: Ford Transit, 12 Passenger Van, 4x2, Regular Roof Height. (Order code: 

X2Z / 99M / 466 / 60C / 92E) (includes OEM rear view back-up camera system (61C)    

     27,842.86 1 27,842.86$               -$                          

Mileage Fees:  50 Miles delivery are included in the base vehicle price (see contract). For 

delivery greater than 50 miles, add $1.80 per mile. (Buyer pays fee to Vendor)  
1.80              -$                          -$                          

 KEYS                                                                                                                     

additional set of 2/each (Order code 86F)               75.00 1 75.00$                      -$                          

EXTERIOR COLORS                                                                                                    

(Included with base price above. No Default- Must Pick One Below )  

Oxford White  YZ

Vermillion Red  E4

School Bus Yellow  BY 

EXTERIOR COLORS (additional cost)  

Sterling Grey   UJ           149.20 -$                          -$                          

Ingot Silver  UX           149.20 -$                          -$                          

Tuxedo Black  UH           149.20 -$                          -$                          

Green Gem    W6           149.20 -$                          -$                          

Blue Jeans  N1           149.20 -$                          -$                          

Pueblo Gold  G3           149.20 -$                          -$                          

-$                          -$                          

 Medium Roof height added to base vehicle, not less than 98" or greater than102" above 

level ground (X2C)  

1,666.00       -$                          -$                          

 High Roof height added to base vehicle, not less than 105" above level ground (X2X) 
3,525.00       -$                          -$                          

4x4 Wheel Drive Conversion Upgrade 

(Available on 12- passenger Ford Transit regular (low) roof vans only. Upgrade done by 3rd 

party vendor, Quigley Motor Company.  Allow 4-6 additional weeks for delivery with this 

option)  (31H / D9K)    

12,695.00     -$                          -$                          

 Size Options 10, 15 Passenger

Downgrade: 12 to 10 passenger Low Roof van with 60/40 Passenger side doors, 150 HP   

(K1Z - K1Z/99M/446/60C/92E/130) 
($1,074.50) -$                          -$                          

Downgrade: 12 to 10 passenger Low Roof van with Sliding Passenger side door. 150 HP 

(K1Y)  ($914.97) -$                          -$                          

Downgrade: 12 to 10 passenger van, Medium Roof van with Sliding passenger side door, 

150 HP  (K1C)  $218.41 -$                          -$                          

Upgrade: 12 to 15 Passenger van  (765)  
$1,478.86 -$                          -$                          

Add Bluetooth system. “Ford Sync” includes AM/FM/Stereo/Audio, Input Jack/Message,  

Center/Sync system.  (58X)  

$679.94

Trailer Towing Package to include wiring harness and extended mirrors for towing 

(Requires Limited Slip Axle) (53B)   484.00          -$                          -$                          

Limited Slip Axle, or traction control system, equivalent in operation to limited slip axle 

performance (X3L- 3.31LS, X4L- 4.10 LS,  X7L- 3.73 LS) 
          324.00 -$                          -$                          

 Ecoboost Engine (gas only) (99G) 1,844.58       -$                          -$                          

Diesel Engine (99V) 6,174.00       -$                          -$                          

 Gaseous fuel prep package (CNG)  (98C)           315.00 -$                          -$                          

CNG Conversion Tanks (Dedicated) Tank size: 20 GGE

3rd party vendor is WESTPORT. (Allow approx. 8-10 additional weeks for delivery with this 

option) 

     12,610.00 -$                          -$                          

CNG Conversion Tanks (Dedicated) Tank size: 23 GGE

3rd party vendor is WESTPORT. (Allow approx. 8-10 additional weeks for delivery with this 

option) 

     12,920.00 -$                          -$                          

Interior Color (Optional Cloth Seat in lieu of vinyl) - Pewter           144.00 -$                          -$                          

Interior Color (Optional Cloth Seat in lieu of vinyl) - Charcoal           144.00 -$                          -$                          

Total Cost for Each Base Vehicle Plus Options 1 ea 27,917.86$               1 ea #DIV/0!

Total Cost for All Vehicles Plus Options 1 27,917.86$               0 -$                          

 Grand Total for Order: 27,917.86$           

 For Dealers:  This spread sheet was designed so that ordering agencies can give you a 

break out of vehicles for your purchase order.  You need to read this spread sheet by 

columns.  Each of the columns allows an agency to order multiple vehicles with different 

option packages and gives you totals for each.

State of Virginia Contract # E194-73520 

2017 Model, Ford Transit, 12 Passenger Van. eVA Vendor: SHEEHY FORD OF 

RICHMOND. eVA Vendor ID #E57154. eVA Commodity Code: 07192.                     

(Includes Modification # 5 changes below - 10 & 15 passenger options )                              
 UNIT PRICE 

QUANTITY EA Base 

Vehicle and  Options # 1

QUANTITY EA Base 

Vehicle and  Options # 2

FOR STATE AGENCIES, OTHER USERS Use this spread sheet to configure your vehicle. You will only need to use a separate column if you are ordering 

multiple vehicles with different options. The only thing you need to enter into the spread sheet are the quantity numbers for the base vehicle and each option you 

want to order.  This information is entered in the yellow column.  The only time you need to use more than one column is when you are ordering multiple vehicles 

with different options.  When you are done save the spreadsheet to your hard drive.  Log into to eVA.  When you get to the add items page click on the non-

catalog tab.  Enter your description as follows.  Vehicles(s) per contract <Enter Contract Number>.  See attached spread sheet.  When you get to the comments 

section of the requisition, check the attach comments box and select the attach file option and attach this spread sheet as your attached file.

Note to State Agencies & Public Bodies -options above are only options which may be ordered. (see contract).                                                                                                                                                                

Enter Color and Other Information or Instructions in Yellow Block to the Right (see color 

codes on Pricing Schedule) 

 X2Y model - Sliding passenger door in lieu of 60/40 fixed door. 


































































